

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY CHECKLIST

NJSA: 45:14-1 (Pharmacy, Board of--
increase number of members)

LAWS OF: 1985 CHAPTER: 89

Bill No: S1923

Sponsor(s): DiFrancesco and others

Date Introduced: June 18, 1984

Committee: Assembly: Higher Education and Regulated Professions

Senate: Labor, Industry and Professions

Amended during passage: No

Date of Passage: Assembly: Feb. 4, 1985

Senate: Oct. 18, 1984

Date of Approval: March 26, 1985

Following statements are attached if available:

Sponsor statement: Yes

Committee statement: Assembly No

Senate Yes

Fiscal Note: No

Veto Message: No

Message on Signing: ~~NO~~ yes.

Following were printed:

Reports: No

Hearings: No

DO NOT WRITE IN THESE SPACES

SENATE, No. 1923

STATE OF NEW JERSEY

INTRODUCED JUNE 18, 1984

By Senators DiFRANCESCO, CARDINALE, O'CONNOR,
FORAN and JACKMAN

Referred to Committee on Labor, Industry and Professions

AN ACT changing the number of members on the Board of
Pharmacy and amending R. S. 45:14-1.

1 BE IT ENACTED *by the Senate and General Assembly of the State*
2 *of New Jersey:*

1 1. R. S. 45:14-1 is amended to read as follows:

2 45:14-1. The board of pharmacy of the State of New Jersey,
3 hereinafter in this chapter designated as the "board", established
4 by an act entitled "An act to regulate the practice of pharmacy in
5 this State," approved March nineteenth, one thousand nine hundred
6 and one (L. 1901, c. 51, p. 85), as amended and supplemented, is
7 continued. The board shall consist of **[five]** *nine* members, **[to]**
8 *two of whom shall be public members and one of whom shall be a*
9 *State executive department member appointed pursuant to the pro-*
10 *visions of P. L. 1971, c. 60 (C. 45:1-2.1 et seq.). Each of the remain-*
11 *ing six members shall be appointed from time to time as herein-*
12 *after directed **[,]** by the governor, **[each of whom]** shall be a citizen*
13 *of and an able and skilled registered pharmacist in this State, shall*
14 *have been registered as a pharmacist in this State for at least five*
15 *years prior to his appointment, shall be actually engaged in conduct-*
16 *ing a pharmacy at the time of his appointment and shall continue in*
17 *the practice of pharmacy during the term of his office. No member*
18 *shall be a teacher or instructor in any college of pharmacy. Upon*
19 *the expiration of the term of office of a member, his successor shall*
20 *be appointed by the Governor for a term of five years from June*
21 *first of the year in which the term of such former member expired,*

EXPLANATION—Matter enclosed in bold-faced brackets **[thus]** in the above bill
is not enacted and is intended to be omitted in the law.
Matter printed in italics *thus* is new matter.

22 and the ~~term~~ *terms* of not more than ~~one member~~ *two members*
23 *who are registered pharmacists* shall expire in any year. Any
24 vacancy in the membership of the board shall be filled for the un-
25 expired term in the manner provided for an original appointment;
26 and the New Jersey Pharmaceutical Association may annually send
27 to the Governor the names of ~~three~~ *four* registered pharmacists
28 engaged in the practice of pharmacy in this State and having the
29 qualifications required by this section, one of whom the Governor
30 may appoint to fill any vacancy occurring in the board.

1 2. This act shall take effect immediately.

STATEMENT

This bill adds one more registered pharmacist member to the Board of Pharmacy. At present there are five registered pharmacist members on the board. This bill also clarifies that two members of the public and one State executive department member were added to the board by P. L. 1971, c. 60 (C. 45:1-2.1 et seq.), as amended by P. L. 1977, c. 285.

SENATE, No. 1923

STATE OF NEW JERSEY

INTRODUCED JUNE 18, 1984

By Senators DiFRANCESCO, CARDINALE, O'CONNOR,
FORAN and JACKMAN

Referred to Committee on Labor, Industry and Professions

AN ACT changing the number of members on the Board of
Pharmacy and amending R. S. 45:14-1.

1 BE IT ENACTED *by the Senate and General Assembly of the State*
2 *of New Jersey:*

1 1. R. S. 45:14-1 is amended to read as follows:

2 45:14-1. The board of pharmacy of the State of New Jersey,
3 hereinafter in this chapter designated as the "board", established
4 by an act entitled "An act to regulate the practice of pharmacy in
5 this State," approved March nineteenth, one thousand nine hundred
6 and one (L. 1901, c. 51, p. 85), as amended and supplemented, is
7 continued. The board shall consist of **[five]** *nine* members, **[to]**
8 *two of whom shall be public members and one of whom shall be a*
9 *State executive department member appointed pursuant to the pro-*
10 *visions of P. L. 1971, c. 60 (C. 45:1-2.1 et seq.). Each of the remain-*
11 *ing six members shall be appointed from time to time as herein-*
12 *after directed***[.]** by the governor, **[each of whom]** shall be a citizen
13 of and an able and skilled registered pharmacist in this State, shall
14 have been registered as a pharmacist in this State for at least five
15 years prior to his appointment, shall be actually engaged in conduct-
16 ing a pharmacy at the time of his appointment and shall continue in
17 the practice of pharmacy during the term of his office. No member
18 shall be a teacher or instructor in any college of pharmacy. Upon
19 the expiration of the term of office of a member, his successor shall
20 be appointed by the Governor for a term of five years from June
21 first of the year in which the term of such former member expired,

**EXPLANATION—Matter enclosed in bold-faced brackets [thus] in the above bill
is not enacted and is intended to be omitted in the law.
Matter printed in italics thus is new matter.**

22 and the ~~term~~ *terms* of not more than ~~one member~~ *two members*
23 *who are registered pharmacists* shall expire in any year. Any
24 vacancy in the membership of the board shall be filled for the un-
25 expired term in the manner provided for an original appointment;
26 and the New Jersey Pharmaceutical Association may annually send
27 to the Governor the names of ~~three~~ *four* registered pharmacists
28 engaged in the practice of pharmacy in this State and having the
29 qualifications required by this section, one of whom the Governor
30 may appoint to fill any vacancy occurring in the board.

1 2. This act shall take effect immediately.

STATEMENT

This bill adds one more registered pharmacist member to the Board of Pharmacy. At present there are five registered pharmacist members on the board. This bill also clarifies that two members of the public and one State executive department member were added to the board by P. L. 1971, c. 60 (C. 45:1-2.1 et seq.), as amended by P. L. 1977, c. 285.

51923 (1985)

SENATE LABOR, INDUSTRY AND PROFESSIONS
COMMITTEE

STATEMENT TO
SENATE, No. 1923

STATE OF NEW JERSEY

DATED: SEPTEMBER 13, 1984

This bill adds one more registered pharmacist member to the Board of Pharmacy. The Board of Pharmacy with this addition will have a total of nine members consisting of six registered pharmacists, two public members and a State executive department member.

BILL S-485, ET. AL.

PAGE TWO

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 27, 1985

Other bills signed by the Governor are:

S-296, sponsored by Senator Wayne Dumont, R-Warren, which prohibits municipalities from assessing construction permit fees on the installation or alteration of solar energy heating or cooling systems.

S-1143, sponsored by Senator Wynona Lipman, D-Essex, to appropriate \$423,484 to provide one time State grants to loan agencies that are recipients of Federal Community Services block grants. The bill restricts the grants to those agencies whose funding cycle begins on October, November or December and requires them to move the starting date of their fiscal year to January 1.

S-1365, sponsored by Senator John Russo, D-Ocean, to provide that county welfare agencies shall handle interstate child support petitions and proceedings.

S-1923, sponsored by Senator Donald DiFrancesco, R-Union, to increase the membership of the State Board of Pharmacy from eight to nine members by adding another registered pharmacist.

S-1969, sponsored by Senator John Caufield, D-Essex, to increase the membership of the Fire Safety Commission from 19 to 20 members by adding a representative of the New Jersey State Association of Fire Districts.

S-2244, sponsored by Senator Thomas Cowan, D-Hudson, to change the date on which election officials may begin distributing absentee ballots from the 25th day prior to the primary or general election to the 40th day prior to those elections.

S-2518, sponsored by Senator John Russo, D-Ocean, to permit planning boards to grant for a period longer than two years the right to approve master plans for large commercial undertakings.